
Work Session Minutes 1 November 4, 2014

WORK SESSION MEETING
BERRIEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 4, 2014
6:00 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman, Robert Griner called the work session meeting of the Berrien County Board of Commissioners
to order on Tuesday, November 4, 2014, at 6:01 p.m. Members of the Board of Commissioners present
were, Commissioner Jimmy Parker, Commissioner Steve Sumner, Commissioner Doc Sumner and
Commissioner John Nugent.

PUBLIC HEARING:  Commissioner Jimmy Parker made a motion to move into public hearing at 6:02
p.m., seconded by Commissioner Steve Sumner.

Public Hearing for the Veterans Memorial Park of South Georgia Inc. – Mr. Scott Jennings came before
the Board and stated they have created a non-profit organization which will acquire a 7.20 acre parcel
from the VFW.  The property is located on Keen Drive, Map 55, Parcel 94.  This property will be used as
a Veterans Memorial Park.  The property is currently zoned as RR (rural residential) and the Land
Development Ordinance allows for a Special Exception for Cultural facilities, libraries, museums and
similar facilities in this zoning.  Chairman Robert Griner asked if their plan for the Veterans Memorial
Park will meet the American Disability Act requirements.  Mr. Jennings said they are working on that.
Commissioner Doc Sumner asked if there is an opposition from those living in the area.  Mr. Jennings
said that everyone is in favor of it.  Commissioner Steve Sumner asked if there is anything in writing
from the landowners surrounding the property stating they are in favor of the Memorial Park.  Mr.
Jennings said he does not have anything in writing.  Commissioner Steve Sumner asked again if it would
meet the requirements for the Americans with Disability Act.  Mr. Jennings stated they are working on it.
Commissioner Steve Sumner stated working on it and meeting it are two different things.  Commissioner
Steve Sumner asked Mr. Nick Lacey if the Planning Commission was in favor and if anyone opposed.
Mr. Lacey stated that there was no opposition.  Chairman Robert Griner asked if there is anyone in
opposition.  There was no one opposing.

Public Hearing for a Special Exception requested by Mr. Rickey Greene – Mr. Rickey Greene came
before the Board requesting a special exception on property  identified as Map & Parcel 51-15-013,
14643 Hwy 129 Nashville, GA.  Mr. Greene resides on a small tract in Alapaha and does not have the
room to park his trucks on his residential lot, so he purchased this property to park his trucks that he uses
to haul feed, seed and chemicals to and from local farmers.  Mr. Greene is requesting the special
exception to place a steel building so he can park his trucks on the property.  There was no opposition.

Commissioner Steve Sumner made the motion to go out of public hearings at 6:10 p.m., seconded by
Commissioner Jimmy Parker.

INVITED GUESTS:
Crissy Staley -

 We only received one sealed bid on the Miller Building.  Crissy Staley opened the sealed bid
before the Board.  The Bid was from Mr. Greg Weaver in the amount of $21,502.00.  Crissy
Staley reminded the Board that they take into consideration the repairs needed to the building
when considering this offer.

 Airport Consultant – Crissy Staley stated that she and Brenda Ferrell have met and would like the
Board to consider terminating our contract with Baker, which is the Engineering Consultant for



Work Session Minutes 2 November 4, 2014

the  Airport.  Commissioner Steve Sumner stated we have been talking about this for about six
months. His recommendation is to have Tom Thomas draft  letter severing the contract effective
January 1st.  He also recommended adding a clause stating no additional payment will be made
until all reports are current.

Jimmy L. Warren – Did not show up at the meeting.

Brenda Herring – Brenda stated that she would like to get a better understanding of how it will work if
Advanced Disposal takes over the transfer site.  Commissioner Steve Sumner explained we are  trying to
find a solution that meets the needs to help Rest EZ get trash from here to Valdosta.  Steve Edwards from
Advanced Disposal said they would be willing to take over the transfer site and then Advanced would
haul the trash to Valdosta.   Greg Walk, Advanced Disposal, said they can operate the facility for a set
rate.  Commissioner Steve Sumner also stated that some counties use a punch card system.
Commissioner Steve Sumner asked would you do commercial.  Greg Walk said he is not sure how
commercial will work.  Brenda Herring asked what her rates would be.  Those rates will have to be set.
Commissioner Steve Sumner stated that another vendor cannot provide the service that Rest EZ does.
The Board asked Brenda Herring if they can negotiate a way to give the Transfer Site to Advanced
Disposal and have reasonable rates is she good with that. Commissioner Steve Sumner said he feels we
need scales and weigh everything. She stated she was and asked why she would not get the current rates
she has now.  Commissioner Sumner explained the landfill rates. Commissioner Doc Sumner said that
Brenda Herring and her crews do an excellent job.  Commissioner Jimmy Parker said we need to do what
we can to keep Brenda operating.  Mr. Nick Lacey encouraged the Board to look at recycling of paper and
plastics if this change is made.  He also asked Brenda Herring about charges for a back of trash and why
the increase.  Mrs. Herring stated that there have been some personnel changes and he should not have
been charged their higher fee.  She made a public apology to Mr. Nick Lacey.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:
A. Fee & Fine Schedule – Administration is requesting the Board table this item until we

have the working document ready to submit.

B. Termite Baiting System – Administration is requesting the Board table this item until we
advertise for bids.

NEW BUSINESS:
A. Special Exception – Veterans Memorial Park of South Georgia Inc. - Administration

received a recommendation from the Planning Commission for property identified as a 7.20 acre tract,
Map 55, Parcel 94 on Keen Drive to be used as a Veterans Memorial Park.  The property is currently
zoned as RR (rural residential) and the Land Development Ordinance allows for a Special Exception for
Cultural facilities, libraries, museums and similar facilities in this zoning. There was no additional
discussion at this time as the public hearing was held at the beginning of the meeting.

B. Special Exception – Rickey Greene - Administration received a recommendation from
the Planning Commission for property owned by Mr. Rickey Greene.  Mr. Greene owns a two acre tract
identified as Map & Parcel 51-15-013, 14643 Hwy 129 Nashville, GA.  Mr. Greene resides on a small tract
in Alapaha and does not have the room to park his trucks on his residential lot, so he purchased this
property to park his trucks that he uses to haul feed, seed and chemicals to and from local farmers.  Mr.
Greene wishes to place a steel building on the property and park his trucks on the property.  It is
currently zoned  AU, Section 5-2 (46) Farm supplies, including feed, seed, insecticides and fertilizers.
There was no additional discussion at this time as the public hearing was held at the beginning of the
meeting.



Work Session Minutes 3 November 4, 2014

C. Aulie Gaskins Rd. – Discussion – Commissioner Steve Sumner stated that on Aulie
Gaskins Rd. the County pulling down fabric and then rocks over millings that were already on the road.
After looking at the road, it appears that the rocks were not put down and that crush and run was used on
the road.  By using the crush and run it is creating really bad white dust.  Even the trees and bushes are
covered in the dust.  Commissioner Steve Sumner said we have to do something about this.
Commissioner Jimmy Parker said he and Commissioner Steve Sumner went to look at the road and have
placed calls to a couple asphalt companies to get a recommendation from them.  Jeff Lundsford from
Rheams advised him normally you put the tar on the bottom and the rock on the top.  Chairman Robert
Griner said that we can add it to our LMIG Project and maybe adjust the roads we have on the list.
Commissioner Steve Sumner suggested having Brenda Ferrell, County Administrator, notify DOT  that
we want to add it to the list and also contact the engineers to add it to the bid package.   Commissioner
Steve Sumner said he feels we need to fix this above any other roads.  Commissioner Doc Sumner agreed
that it needs to be done.    Curtis Ray attended the meeting and said that it did look like gravel in the
beginning.  He feels it is pulverized.  Commissioner Steve Sumner asked Mr. Ray to please assure his
family that it is a high priority.  Mr. Ray asked if we have a water truck.  The county does not have a
water truck other than the fire trucks.  He asked if we could wet it down every day until a permanent
solution is done.  Commissioner Steve Sumner told him we would not be able to do that.

D. Personnel Policy Amendment – Administration is making recommendation to update the
personnel policies to include a section  for legal documents.  County Attorney, Tom Thomas, wrote the
amendment to the policy and administration is asking approval to include in the personnel policies as well
as have it be a part of the new hire packet.

E. American Red Cross - Administration received a request from Cheryl Edwards, Disaster
Program Manager with the American Red Cross to release the $5,000.00 which was budgeted to the
American Red Cross.  These funds are used for disaster aid to the residents of Berrien County.

F. Equipment Repair – Jail - Administration received a request from Rodney Stone,
Maintenance, to purchase supplies to repair the motor in the commercial dryer at the jail.  Total
cost is $1,210.93 from Tri-State Technical & TLC Equipment Co.  This item needs to be ratified.

G. Alapaha River Water Trail – Discussion – Commissioner Steve Sumner stated he
received several calls on this last week. Larry Hanson and the Mayor from Valdosta along with
our Mayor asked if we would be interested in this grant. The grant is up to $100,000.00.
Georgia did not participate last year.  There is a 20% match but it can be in-kind.
Commissioner Steve Sumner stated he originally thought about using it towards the board ramps
at Berrien Beach.   He said that this grant can also be used to acquire land to build camp sites.
This is a grant that Commissioner Steve Sumner feels we should pursue however he feels we
need to look at this for next year.  The deadline is November 25th and this is a lot of work to put
together in such a short time.  Mr. Nick Lacey said he was talking with Lanier County last week
about Banks Lake and some of the things they want to do.  He suggested doing a joint project.
He also suggested asking them if November 25th is a hard deadline.  Commissioner Steve
Sumner said he already asked them about the deadline.  If no one applies this year then there will
be three years of rollovers.

H. 2015 Beer, Wine & Liquor License Renewals - Administration received three
applications for Beer, Wine & Liquor License from the below listed applicants.  All applicants have met
the criteria and have paid their fees as set forth in the ordinance. Applications were: The Whiskey



Work Session Minutes 4 November 4, 2014

Barrel – Steve Lindsey, Walker’s Drive Inn – William Walker and Horse Creek Winery – Ed Perry.

I. 2015 Solid Waste Private Collector License Renewals – Admonition received one
application for a Solid Waste License.  It is from Advanced Disposal.

REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES AND DEPARTMENTS: None

COMMISSIONER’S ITEMS:
John Nugent – SGRC has completed their maps for recommendations on the fire districts.  He suggested
setting up a meeting with the Fire Chiefs and put together a recommended proposal.  The Board was in
agreement.

Doc Sumner – There was discussion on the Korean War Memorial. There was discussion on the location
of the flag.  Commissioner Steve Sumner asked where we are on the removal of the shrubs.  County
Administrator stated we were waiting until the construction around the courthouse was complete.  We can
call and see if the city’s construction is completed.

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR COMMENTS:
Brenda Ferrell –

 The Saddle Club is requesting an ambulance at their shows once a month.  There as discussion on
if we start this with one event then other outside events would also want us to commit to their
events.  The Board does not feel it is good to start this.

 Skate Park – the Board asked to get quotes on the skate park.  The insurance company will not
even quote it unless we answer a series of questions.  Do we want to answer these and get a
quote.  The other option is to take it down.  There is repair that needs to be done on it.  The Board
feels that a sign needs to be placed there and that the county is not responsible.  They
recommended having Rodney Stone, Maintenance, to look at the ramps and give his opinion on
maintenance and repairs.  If it is too much, then we can just take it down.

 Christmas Dinner was changed to December 16th.  Employee Christmas Lunch will be December
18th.

 ACCG Fall District Meeting will be Tuesday,  November 18th from 4:30 to 6:30.  I encourage
everyone to attend.

 Hog Show Donation – The Board wants to continue submitting a donation as they have in the
past.  Each Commissioner donates from his own funds.  No county money.

PUBLIC COMMENTS: None.

ADJOURN
With no other business to come before the Board, Commissioner Jimmy Parker made the motion to
adjourn, which was seconded by Commissioner Steve Sumner. Meeting was adjourned at 7:32 p.m.

_______________________________ _______________________________
Chairman, Robert Griner Vice Chairman, Jimmy Parker

_______________ _______________ _______________________________
Commissioner, Steve Sumner Commissioner, John Nugent

_______________________________ ATTEST________________________
Commissioner, Doc Sumner County Clerk



Work Session Minutes 5 November 4, 2014


